
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

WEDNESDAY 20TH NOVEMBER, 2019 
 

AT 10.30 AM 

VENUE 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 3, HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 
Councillors 
 

Claire Farrier 
Zakia Zubairi 
John Hart 
 

 
 

 
 

 
* The licensing authority will only allow licensing decisions to be taken by a minimum of three 
Councillors.  In the event of one Member being unable to attend, their place will be 

substituted by another Member taken from the membership of the full Licensing Committee.  

In the event of this substitution taking place, all parties will be informed of the change of 

Membership at the beginning of the hearing. 
 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Governance Service   governanceservice@barnet.gov.uk  

 
Media Relations contact: Garath Greene 020 8359 7039 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  
 

 

2.   DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 

 

3.   LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE  
 

5 - 8 

4.   REPORT OF THE LICENSING AND TRADING STANDARDS  
 

9 - 44 

5.   MOTION TO EXCLUDE THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

6.   DELIBERATION BY THE SUB-COMMITTEE IN PRIVATE 
SESSION  
 

 

7.   RE-ADMISSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC: 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF THE DECISION OF THE SUB-
COMMITTEE  
 

 

8.   ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Governance 
Service   governanceservice@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text 
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms 
also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 



 
    

 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



   

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET 

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE 

HEARINGS PROCEDURE 

 
 

 
General points 

 
The following procedure is based on Regulations made by the Secretary of State under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (“the Hearings Regulations”) which may be viewed or downloaded from 

the website of the Department for Culture, Media and Sport by following links from 
www.culture.gov.uk  

 
The procedure is intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a fair 

hearing.  The conduct of individual hearings may vary slightly according to circumstances 
and the discretion of the Chairman.  In all cases, however, this general framework will be 

followed. 
 

The procedure allows each party a maximum period of 5 minutes in which to present their 
case (Regulations 16 & 24).  At the end of the time allowed, the Chairman will terminate the 
presentation and the hearing will proceed in the form of a discussion led by the authority to 

explore points of dispute.  The discussion will not be timed. 
 

The procedure is subject to periodic review and amendment to reflect best practice and 
relevant legislative changes.  An updated version of this procedure is published as soon as 

possible following any such amendments. 
 

 
 

Governance 
Officer 
 
 
Chairman 

 To seek nominations for Chairman 

 Elect Chairman 

 Hand over to the Chairman 
 

 Introduces him/herself and Members of the Committee, and outlines 
their roles.   

  Introduces Licensing, Legal and Governance Officer. 
  Explains that Legal and Governance Officers will be present during 

the Committee’s deliberations to advise only, and that the Licensing 
Officer will be excluded from deliberations. 

  Asks parties present to introduce themselves. 
  Outlines procedure to be followed. 
  Asks all parties to confirm their understanding of the procedure. 
  Clarifies any aspect(s) of the procedure where any parties are 

uncertain or asks Legal or Governance Officer as appropriate to 
clarify. 

Governance 
Officer 

 Informs Committee of absent parties. 

  Details persons whom a party is seeking permission to represent 
them at hearing. 

  Panel confer regarding permission. 
  Chairman announces decision regarding permission. 
 5

AGENDA ITEM 3

http://www.culture.gov.uk/


   

 
Licensing Officer presents the report to the Committee 
  Is a statement of the facts including details of the application and 

operating schedule, relevant policy details, detail representations 
made, a chronology of events and highlights the points on which the 
Authority requires clarification. 

 
Applicant  Presents opening submissions and clarifies points raised by Authority 

in notice of hearing.  Time allowed 5 mins. 
 
Other parties  Presents opening submissions either in person or by spokes person  

Time allowed 5 mins per interested party.   
  
Note regarding use of video evidence 
Video evidence must be in DVD format and will form part of the relevant party's five 
minutes opening submission. Any party wishing to use video evidence must submit a copy 
to the Authority along with sufficient, identical extra copies to serve on all the opposing 
parties – i.e. if the applicant is submitting it, there must be enough copies for all parties 
making representations and if a party making representations is submitting it there must 
be a copy for the applicant. The recording must be edited down to the highlights, 
containing only relevant matter which relates to the written representation previously 
submitted. In addition, a description of how, when and where the video was recorded and 
what it contains must be submitted. These must be supplied to the Authority at least five 
working days before the hearing. 
 
Members question Licensing Officer on Policy 
 
Discussion 
 
Chairman leads a discussion concentrating on points of dispute: 
 
Chairman asks Applicant what he disputes in other parties’ submissions, and asks other 
parties to comment. 
 
Chairman proceeds through all objectors dealing with all matters of contention. 
 
When Chairman feels all matters have been thoroughly discussed and all parties have 
been given a fair and equal opportunity to comment and make representations, she/he 
closes discussion. 
 
Determination 
 
There are two procedures depending on whether or not determination is to be made at the 
end of the Hearing or within five working days of the Hearing.  This later announcement of 
determination is permitted in terms of the Legislation for certain types of applications. 
 
 
Chairman informs all present that the Committee will deliberate, that Legal and 
Governance Officer will remain to advise but will not be part of decision-making 
process, and that all others must leave (under Regulation 14). 
  Parties, apart from Legal and Governance Officer, leave the room. 
  The Committee deliberates, with advice as required from Legal and 

Governance Officer, and reaches a conclusion.  The Legal officer 
may assist, as required, in formulating the wording of the 
determination. 

  Parties return. 
6



   

  Chairman reads out determination, and advises it will be sent in 
writing to all parties. 

  Opportunity for determination to be clarified by any interested party 
who is unclear. 

  Chairman gives advice about appealing against the determination. 
  Chairman thanks all for attending and closes the meeting. 
 
…Within five working days of the hearing 
  Chairman explains requirement to determine the Hearing within five 

workings days, and advises that the Committee will proceed to 
deliberate and announce the determination within that time. 

 
  During deliberations, Legal and Governance Officers remain to 

advise on law and procedure as required.  The Legal Officer may 
assist, as required, in formulating the wording of the determination.  
The Licensing Officer plays no part in the determination and 
withdraws for this part of the proceedings.  

  Chairman advises all parties that they will receive written notification 
of the determination within five working days of the Hearing date, 
together with general information on how to appeal against the 
determination. 

  Chairman thanks all parties for attending and invites the applicant, 
objector(s), other party(ies) and the Licensing Officer to leave. 

  
 

Information on Appealing against the decision 
 

You may at any time before the expiration of a period of 21 days from notification appeal 
to Willesden Magistrates' Court, 448 High Road London England NW10 2DZ (Telephone 

020 8955 0555, DX 110850 Willesden 2) by way of Complaint for an Order.  The Court 
may either dismiss the appeal, substitute for the decision appealed against any other 
decision which could have been made by the Licensing Authority or remit the case to the 
Licensing Authority to dispose of it in accordance with the directions of the court, and can 
make such order as to costs as it thinks fit. 

 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary
This report asks the Sub-Committee to consider a Temporary Event Notice under Licensing 
Act 2003.     

Recommendations 
1. That the Sub-Committee considers the Temporary Event Notice for an event to be held on
Wednesday 20th November 2019 at 10.30am at Senator Restaurant & Banquet, 3 Bell Lane, 
London, NW4 2BP, to which a Police Objection has been received. 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

Wednesday 20th November 2019 
10.30am  

Title 

Temporary Event Notice for 
Senator Restaurant & Banquet, 
3 Bell Lane, London, NW4 2BP 

Report of Trading Standards & Licensing 

Wards Hendon 

Status Public 

Urgent N/A 

Key N/A 

Enclosures 

Report of the Licensing Officer 
Annex 1 – Temporary Event Notice 
Annex 2 – Premises Licence 
Annex 3 – Police Objection  
Annex 4 – Notice of Decision 
Annex 5 –  PRESCRIBED FORM OF NOTICE (conditions on a 

temporary event NOTICE) AND STATEMENT OF 
CONDITIONS 

Officer Contact Details 
Mariesa Connolly 0208 359 2125 
Mariesa.connolly@barnet.gov.uk 

9

AGENDA ITEM 4



 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The licensing authority having received an objection from the police that that 

not withdrawn must (in the case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to 
consider the objection (unless all parties agree that this is unnecessary 
 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The Licensing Act 2003 states that should the licensing authority receive an 
objection notice from the police or EHA that is not withdrawn, it must (in the 
case of a standard TEN only) hold a hearing to consider the objection (unless 
all parties agree that this is unnecessary). The licensing committee may decide 
to allow the licensable activities to go ahead as stated in the notice. If the notice 
is in connection with licensable activities at licensed premises, the licensing 
authority may also impose one or more of the existing licence conditions on the 
TEN (insofar as such conditions are not inconsistent with the event) if it 
considers that this is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
If the authority decides to impose conditions, it must give notice to the premises 
user which includes a statement of conditions (a “notice (statement of 
conditions)”) and provide a copy to each relevant party. Alternatively, it can 
decide that the event would undermine the licensing objectives and should not 
take place. In this case, the licensing authority must give a counter notice. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not applicable  
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 The decision will have immediate effect 
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The Council’s Licensing Policy 
 
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 None 
 
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional Reference 
 

5.3.1 A valid objection notice has been received in relation to this Temporary Event 
Notice, which is therefore before the Sub-Committee for consideration 
 

5.3.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee will discharge the functions under the Licensing 

10



Act 2003 and associated Regulations, as delegated to it by the Licensing 
Committee 
 

5.4 Risk Management 
 

5.4.1 Not applicable    
 
5.5 Equalities and Diversity  

 
5.5.1 Licence applications/notices are dealt with according to the provisions of the 

Licensing Act 2003 and associated Regulations which allow both applications 
and representations to applications to be made by all sectors of the community 
  

5.6 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.6.1 Not applicable 
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
6.1 The Temporary Event Notice, The Licensing Officer report and the enclosures 

are attached to this report 
 
 

 
REPORT CLEARANCE CHECKLIST 
(Removed prior to publication and retained by Governance Service) 
 
Note: All reports must be cleared by the appropriate Committee Chairman, Chief 
Officer, Legal, Finance and Governance as a minimum.  Report authors should also 
engage with subject matter experts from other service areas where this is required 
(e.g. procurement, equalities, risk, etc.).  The name and date that the chairman or 
officer has cleared the report must be included in the table below or the report will 
not be accepted.    
 
Legal, Finance and Governance require a minimum of 5 working days to 
provide report clearance. Clearance cannot be guaranteed for reports 
submitted outside of this time and your report is likely to be withdrawn from 
the agenda and deferred to the next scheduled meeting.  
 
AUTHOR TO COMPLETE TABLE BELOW: 
 

Who Clearance Date Name 

Committee Chairman   

Chief Officer      

HB Public Law   

11



Finance   

Governance   

   

   

   

 

 

12



 

 

 

 

 

 

Officer Report 

13



 

LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

REPORT FOR PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Senator Restaurant & Banquet, 3 Bell Lane, London, NW4 2BP 
 
The Notice 

 
This Temporary Event Notice was given to the Licensing Authority by Mr Mohammad Javanmardi 
under Section 100 of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
1.1 The notice submitted seeks to permit the sale of alcohol by retail, the provision of 

regulated entertainment and the provision of late night refreshment for an event which is 
due to commence on the following dates & times; 
 
Saturday, Nov 30th from 00.00am to 04.00am 

 
1.2 A copy of the Temporary Event Notice is attached to this report in Annex 1. 

 
1.3 Senator Restaurant & Banquet holds a premises licence which currently allows licensable 

activities from; 
 
Standard times; 
 

Sale or supply of Alcohol 
Monday to Sunday 12:00hrs - 00:30hrs 
 
Playing of recorded music - Indoors 
Monday to Sunday 11:00hrs - 00:30hrs 
 
Provision of late night refreshment - Indoors 
Monday to Sunday 23:00hrs - 00:30hrs 

 
The hours that the premises are open to the public 

Standard Timings 
Monday to Sunday 11:00hrs - 01:00hrs 
 
Non Standard Opening Hours: 
Yalda Night, Christmas Eve, New Year’s Eve, Valentines Day and good Friday from 
12:00hrs till 02:00hrs 

 
A copy of the current premises licence is attached to this report in Annex 2 

 
1 Police Objection 

 
2.1 The licensing authority has received a police objection from PC Vicky Wilcock on behalf of 

the Metropolitan Police Service.  PC Vicky Wilcock states: 
 
‘The Police objection is primarily concerned with the crime and disorder, prevention of public 
nuisance and public safety objectives.  
 
The Police objection & any supporting information are attached to the report in Annex 3. 

 
2 Officers Comments 

 
3.1 The London Borough of Barnet’s Licensing Policy states the following about Temporary 
 Event Notices: 
  

14



 

• Applicants should be aware that the serving on the Council of a Temporary 
Event Notice does not remove their obligations under other legislation. Where 
necessary, permissions should be sought from the appropriate body. The 
Council expects that applicants understand their obligations in respect of:  

 
 • Planning permissions  
 • Health and safety  
 • Noise pollution  
 • The erection of temporary structures  
 • Road closures  
 • The use of pyrotechnics  
 • Anti-social behaviour  
 

• Applicants intending to sell alcohol should be aware that it is an offence to 
supply alcohol to minors or persons who are drunk. Also that the Police have 
powers to close down events without notice on the grounds of disorder, the 
likelihood of disorder or because of public nuisance caused by noise.  

 

• Applicants should be aware that a limit of less than 500 persons at any one 
time applies to temporary events and failure to comply with this limit may lead 
to prosecution. Where appropriate, organisers are strongly recommended to 
employ means of recording the number of persons entering and leaving the 
premises.  

 

• The attention of applicant is drawn to the fact police will expect to see a 
completed Music Promotion / Event Risk Assessment Scheme (Form 696 & 
696A). If the event involves live or DJ music and is open to the public or 
section of the public.  
 

3 Determination 
 
4.1 The sub-committee shall determine the application in accordance with Section 105 of the 

Licensing Act 2003. The Notice of Decision is attached as Annex 4. 
 

(1) Where a relevant objection notice is made, the authority must- 
 

(a) hold a hearing to consider the objection notice, unless the premise 
user, the chief officer of police who gave the objection notice and 
the authority agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and  

(b) having regard to the objection notice, give the premises user a 
counter notice under this section if it considers it necessary for the 
promotion of the crime prevention objection to do so.   

 
4.2 The licensing sub-committee can only 

 
(a) grant the notice as applied for; 
(b) impose conditions on the notice that are shown on the premises 

licence/club premises certificate for this property if it is considered 
appropriate for the promotion of a licensing objective, 

(c) reject the application; 
 

Section 105 (2) states: -  
 

1. The relevant licensing authority must –  
 

(a) in a case where it decides not to give a counter notice under this 
section, give the premises user and the relevant chief officer of 
police notice of the decision, and 

15



 

 
(b) in any other case –  

(i) give the premises user the counter notice and a notice stating 
the reasons for its decision, and 

(ii) give the relevant chief officer of police a copy of both of those 
notices. 

 
4.3 Any decision or counter notice must be issued to the premises user at least 24 hours 

before the specified event period.  A failure to do so will result in the premises user being 
able to proceed with the event.  

 
 
5. Attaching conditions 
 

The licensing authority may decide not to give the applicant a counter notice under section 
105 of the Act and instead impose one or more conditions on the notice in accordance 
with section 106A(2) of the Act. 
 
The premises licence in place for this premises with its attached conditions can be found 
attached to this report in Annex 5 
 

5.1 Full Copies of the Councils Statement of Licensing Policy, the Statutory Guidance to the 
Act will be available at the Licensing Sub Committee hearing or in advance if required.  A 
map centrally locating the premises and premises plans will be available at the hearing. 

 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Mariesa Connolly 
 
TS & Licensing Enforcement Officer 
 
 
Annex 1 – Temporary Event Notice 
Annex 2 – Premises Licence 
Annex 3 – Police objection 
Annex 4 – Decision notice 

Annex 5 -  PRESCRIBED FORM OF NOTICE (conditions on a temporary event NOTICE) AND    
 STATEMENT OF CONDITIONS 

 
 

16



ANNEX 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Temporary Event Notice 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



ANNEX 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Premises Licence 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



ANNEX 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Police Objection 

37



38



39



40



ANNEX 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notice of Decision 

41



ANNEX 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prescribed Form of Notice 

42



PRESCRIBED FORM OF NOTICE (CONDITIONS ON A TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE) AND 
STATEMENT OF CONDITIONS 

The prescribed form for a notice (conditions on a temporary event notice) is as follows: 

London Borough of Barnet, London Borough of Barnet, 8th Floor, Barnet Council, 2 Bristol Avenue, 
Colindale, NW9 4EW 

Notice (Conditions on a Temporary Event Notice) – Permitted Temporary Activities 

On 5th November 2019 the licensing authority received from you, Mr Mohammad Javanmardi, a 
temporary event notice (“the notice”) in respect of proposed temporary licensable activities 
due to take place 30th of November 2019 at Senator Restaurant & Banquet, 3 Bell Lane, 
London, NW4 2BP.  The licensing authority has received an objection under section 104(2) of 
the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).  The licensing authority has decided not to give you a 
counter notice under section 105 of the Act and instead is imposing one or more conditions on 
the notice in accordance with section 106A(2) of the Act.   

The attached statement (“statement of conditions”) sets out the condition(s) which has/have 
been imposed on the notice. 

 The objection which applies is indicated by an “X” in the following table. 

Objection Insert “X” as 
applicable 

A chief officer of police for any police area in which the premises are 
situated is satisfied that allowing the premises to be used in accordance 
with the notice would undermine a licensing objective. 

x 

A local authority exercising environmental health functions for the area 
in which the premises are situated is satisfied that allowing the premises 
to be used in accordance with the notice would undermine a licensing 
objective. 

A copy of this notice will be sent to the chief of police and the local authority exercising environmental 
health functions for the area in which the premises specified in the temporary event notice you gave is 
situated. 

The Licensing Act 2003 does not make provision for you to appeal against this counter notice. 

Under section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003, a person commits an offence if he carries on a 
licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise than under and in accordance with an 
authorisation; or if he knowingly allows a licensable activity to be so carried on. A person convicted of 
such an offence is liable to imprisonment for a term not exceeding six months or to a fine not 
exceeding £20,000, or to both. 

SIGNATURE 
On behalf of the licensing authority 

DATE 

Name of 
Officer 
signing 

43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing Procedure
	4 Report of the Licensing and Trading Standards



